
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 13 SEPTEMBER 2012 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL   

Time: 6.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  
 
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman for the 2012/13 municipal year.  
  
3. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of meeting held on 26th April 2012 (previously circulated).  
  
4. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Chairman  
 
5. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by members of interests in respect of items on this agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
6. Member Development Strategy 2012/13 (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 Report of the Democratic Services Manager.  
  
7. Electoral Review - Warding Patterns (Pages 11 - 18) 
 
 Report of the Democratic Services Manager.  
  

 
 



 

8. Public Speaking at Council Meetings (Pages 19 - 24) 
 
 Report of the Democratic Services Manager. 
  
9. Special Council 2012 (Pages 25 - 27) 
 
 Report of the Democratic Services Manager. 
  
10. Appointments to Committees and Changes to Membership  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Richard Newman-Thompson (Chairman), June Ashworth, Melanie Forrest, 

Janet Hall, Roger Mace, Vikki Price and Sylvia Rogerson 
 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Tony Anderson (Substitute), Tim Hamilton-Cox (Substitute), Geoff Knight 

(Substitute), Jane Parkinson (Substitute), Ian Pattison (Substitute) and Emma Smith 
(Substitute) 

 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Peter Baines, Democratic Services - 01524 582074, or email 

pbaines@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Wednesday 5th September 2012.   

 



COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
  

 
MEMBER DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY REVIEW 

  
13th SEPTEMBER 2012 

 
Report of the Democratic Services Manager 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To agree a revised Member Development Strategy 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That Council Business Committee consider the draft  Member Development 

Strategy for 2012/13, and refer the approved document to be endorsed at 
Council. 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Council Business Committee is asked to agree an updated version of the 

Member Development Strategy on an annual basis.  This is to ensure that 
member development work is focussed on current Corporate Plan objectives and  
meets the needs of members. 

 
1.2 The 2012/13 draft is appended to this report. 
 
2.0 Details 
 
2.1 The new Corporate Plan maintains a clear emphasis on community leadership, 

and commits the Council to delivering an: 
 

…increased number of Councillors undertaking training/development in    
community leadership 
 

2.2 This objective is a key priority of the new Member Development Strategy.  There 
have been some disappointing attendance figures at member briefing events 
during the last year, and the strategy aims to encourage greater participation 
over the course of 2012/13. 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



 
 
 
2.3 Increasing participation in member development will be crucial to retaining the 

North West Employers Organisation’s (NWEO) Member Development Charter, 
which is currently held at Level 1 and is due for re-assessment. 

 
At a recent meeting, Council Business Committee agreed that the council should 
try to retain the Charter at Level One.  To be successful, the council will need to 
demonstrate compliance with the following six points: 

 
i. continued commitment to member development demonstrated at all 

levels across the council; 
 
ii. an established member development strategy to support organisational 

needs and overall strategy; 
 

iii. clarity of subject area and methods of delivery based on member needs 
assessments; 

 
iv. 75% of members having completed a personal development plan; 
 
v. clear communication strategy which supports member development; 

 
vi. a method of evaluating learning and development activities and 

continuous improvement. 
 

Whilst these requirements are already largely met, members will have an 
important role to play in the review process. The NWEO assessors will be looking 
for all members to demonstrate their knowledge of the Member Development 
Strategy and their enthusiasm and commitment to Member Development. With 
this in mind, it is recommended that the Committee recommend the revised 
Member Development Strategy to full Council for endorsement to bring the 
Strategy, and the Charter review process, to the attention of all Councillors. 
 

3.0 Conclusion 
 
3.1 The revised Member Development Strategy contributes to corporate priorities by 

targeting an increased number of councillors participating in community leadership 
training.   Members are reminded that this is a key document for the Charter Level 
One review process and are asked to consider the attached draft for approval and 
recommend it to Council for endorsement. 

 
 
 
 

Page 2



CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
None arising from this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
None arising from this report. The funding for training events will be met from the Member 
Development Training budget for 2012/13 of £10,500. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 

Contact Officer: Mr P Baines 
Telephone:  01524 582074 
E-mail: PBaines@lancaster.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 3



 

 fr 

 
 
 

Lancaster City Council 
Member Development Strategy 

2012/13 
 

Page 4



 

Introduction from the Chairman 
 
This strategy sets out the council’s member development priorities for the coming year, 
based on the Corporate Plan and feedback from councillors. 
 
Members face a continuing challenge to provide quality services in a period of sustained 
austerity, and this document is designed to ensure that the right kind of training and 
support is in place. 

Reviewed on an annual basis by the Council Business Committee, this year’s strategy 
builds on the previous version by maintaining a strong focus on community leadership.  
In addition, it contains a commitment to review the council’s Member Development 
Charter award. 

The Corporate Plan sets out the council’s priorities and informs much of the member 
training work which takes place throughout the year.  Alongside community leadership, 
this year’s Corporate Plan identifies the following themes as key priorities for the coming 
year:  

• economic growth; 
• health and wellbeing; and 
• clean, green and safe places. 

Democratic Services will ensure that each of these themes is reflected in a rolling 
training programme.  This work will also be informed by councillors’ feedback and will 
take in external support from the Keep It REAL (Responsive, Efficient, Accountable, and 
Local)  programme, being delivered by the Local Government Association.  

 

 

 
 
Richard Newman-Thompson                                        
Chairman, Council Business Committee                      
 
 
 

Page 5



 

 Objectives 
 
This year’s strategy has five objectives: 
 
 

1. To provide support on the relevant themes of the Corporate Plan, 
with a particular focus on community leadership 

 
 
2. To complete a successful review of the council’s Member 

Development Charter 
 
 

3. To contribute toward improved IT facilities for elected members 
 
 

4. To hold high quality training sessions in partnership with 
neighbouring authorities 

 
 
5. To run an effective internal training programme 

 

Page 6



 

1. To provide support on the relevant themes of the Corporate Plan, with a 
particular emphasis on community leadership    

 
The Council’s long term ambition is that: 
 
by promoting city, coast and countryside, we will secure a safe and prosperous 
community that is proud of its natural and cultural assets and provides lasting 
opportunities for all. 
 
To pursue this, the Council recently approved four main priorities in the Corporate Plan: 
 

• clean, green and safe places; 
• community leadership; 
• economic growth; and 
• health and wellbeing. 

 
Whilst elected Members will contribute to all of the above, the Corporate Plan sets out a 
success measure in relation to community leadership with a direct relevance to member 
development: 
 
…increased number of Councillors undertaking training/development in community 
leadership. 
 
A range of events will be held over the course of the year to achieve this, both led by 
officers from the council and taking place under the Keep It REAL programme. 
 
Keep It REAL is a Local Government Association (LGA) scheme, running from February 
– December 2012, to support councils on an issue of local importance.  In Lancaster, 
officers from Community Engagement wrote a bid for Keep It REAL support, in which 
they identified the need for ‘a major shift in the role of ward councilors...to become more 
visible, approachable, accessible, proactive and engaging’. 

Keep It REAL will support the council by providing a team of external facilitators, 
member and officer peers, and national civil society experts.  A steering group has been 
established to co-ordinate Keep It REAL in Lancaster, featuring councillors working with 
an LGA facilitator. 

In addition to Keep It REAL, Democratic Services will continue to run a series of events 
for members on community leadership and wider aspects of the corporate plan.  In 
particular, this year will see the return of cultural taster sessions, designed to increase 
members’ knowledge and understanding of some of the different cultures that exist 
within the district. 

2. To complete a successful review of the council’s Member Development  
Charter 

The Member Development Charter is an award which recognises a local authority’s 
commitment to member development.  The council was awarded level one of the 
Charter in 2008. 
 

Page 7



 

The Charter helps to build elected member capacity by improving skills, knowledge and 
experience. It was developed by Local Government Improvement and Development 
(formerly the IDeA) and the nine regional employers organisations. 
 
Administrated in the region by the North West Employers Organisation (NWEO), the 
Charter operates at two levels; Level One is awarded to local authorities with a strong 
member development function, whilst Level Two takes Councillor development a stage 
further. 
 
Lancaster’s level one award is now due for review, and the Council Business Committee 
has determined that the council should work to retain it.  To be successful, the council 
will need to demonstrate compliance with the following six points: 
 

i. continued commitment to member development demonstrated at all 
levels across the council; 

 
ii. an established member development strategy to support organisational 

needs and overall strategy; 
 

iii. clarity of subject area and methods of delivery based on member needs 
assessments; 

 
iv. 75% of members having completed a personal development plan; 
 
v. clear communication strategy which supports member development; 

 
vi. a method of evaluating learning and development activities and 

continuous improvement. 
 
Officers are currently working to gather evidence in support of retaining the charter, and 
will produce regular reports for consideration at Council Business Committee throughout 
the year. 
 
 
3. To contribute toward improved IT facilities for elected members 
 
It has become clear, as of summer 2012, that some aspects of members’ IT provision 
are no longer fit for purpose.  Whilst councillors’ IT provision is delivered by the ICT 
department, it is essential that members work closely with ICT to ensure that 
improvements are focussed on need. 
 
Easy access to email, word processing and electronic council documents is essential for 
councillors in this day and age, and it is important that all members of the council have 
this.  To make the best use of technology, and justify the cost of providing it, it is also 
essential that members are confident in their use of IT. 
 

Page 8



 

Improving the current situation will need the input of councillors and members of staff 
from the ICT department and Democratic Services and an IT Steering Group has been 
formed to enable that.    
 
The steering group will start from scratch with a needs assessment, and work from there 
to ensure that the most appropriate hardware, software and training is available to all 
councilors. 
 
 
4. Joint training 
 
Democratic Services has organised a range of joint training events over the course of 
the previous year, to which members and officers have been invited from neighbouring 
authorities. 
 
This has proved to be a successful means of providing networking opportunities for 
members, introducing new points of view for discussion, and keeping the cost of training 
down for the council.    
 
Sessions on scrutiny, chairing skills and various forms of licensing have been held in this 
vein over the past year, and Democratic Services will continue to work with local 
authorities throughout Cumbria and Lancashire to provide similar events in 2012/13. 
 
 
5. Run an effective internal training programme 
 
Member Briefings are run on a monthly basis by Democratic Services, and provide a 
detailed insight into different aspects of the council’s work.   Hosted by senior officers 
and often involving site visits, member briefings will continue to be held over the course 
of the municipal year. 
 
Attendance figures have been disappointingly low at member briefings since the 2011 
local election, and Democratic Services will work hard to increase the level of 
participation over the coming year.  Personal Development Plans have given a clear 
indication of the subjects members would like further training on, and officers will act on 
that to offer sessions which are attractive and relevant. 
 
Member briefings are now offered routinely at 6.10pm to accommodate councillors in full 
time employment, and it is hoped that increasing numbers will begin to engage with the 
sessions. 
 
Finally, additional events will continue on an ad hoc basis, in response to developments 
at the council, and to further the Council’s relationship with external partners such as 
nearby local authorities, universities and other public service organisations in the area. 
 
 

Page 9



 

Officer Support 
 
Democratic Services offer day-to-day support, and are responsible for co-
ordinating member development work at the Council.  The key officers to contact 
are: 
 
Peter Baines 
Senior Democratic Support Officer 
Tel: (01524) 582074 
Email: pbaines@lancaster.gov.uk 
 
 
Jenny Kay 
Democratic Support Officer 
Tel: (01524) 582065 
Email: jkay@lancaster.gov.uk 
 
 
Julie Rutlidge                                                         
Democratic Support Assistance 
Tel: (01524) 582170 
Email: jrutlidge@lancaster.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 

Electoral Review – Warding Patterns 
  

13 September 2012 
 

Report of the Democratic Services Manager 
 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To update the Committee on the next stage of the Electoral Review of the district and to 
consider whether the Council should make a warding pattern submission to the Local 
Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE). 

 

This report is public 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the Committee considers whether the Council should make a 

submission to the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England (LGBCE) on warding patterns; and 

 
(2) If so, to consider when and how the submission should be drafted and 

agreed by the Committee to meet the LGBCE’s deadline of 15 October 
2012. 

 
 

(1) Introduction 

 
1.1 Members will be aware that Council has authorised this Committee to 

consider and approve any submissions to the LGBCE during its electoral 
review of Lancaster district. The Committee endorsed a submission to the 
LGBCE regarding Council size on 15 March 2012. 

 
1.2 On 24 July 2012, the LGBCE wrote to the Chief Executive (copy letter 

appended) to inform him that the Commission was minded to recommend a 
council size of 60 members as the most appropriate for Lancaster City 
Council. The Commission also announced the start of the next stage of the 
electoral review, which would be a period of information gathering to develop 
a new pattern of warding arrangements for Lancaster district. 

 
(2) Information gathering stage 
 
2.1 This second stage of the review is expected to conclude on 15 October 2012. 

The Commission wants to develop a good understanding of community 

Agenda Item 7Page 11



identity in the district to help construct a pattern of wards that achieves “good 
electoral equality, reflects community identities and interests and provides for 
effective and convenient local government” with “strong, easily identifiable 
boundaries.” 

 
2.2 Officers understand from email correspondence with the LGBCE that it is 

usual for a council and/or its political groups, to make their own submissions 
to the LGBCE on warding arrangements 

 

(3) Proposal Details 

 
3.1 The Committee is asked to consider whether any submission should be 

made on behalf of the Council regarding warding patterns and, if so, to 
consider the process for drafting and agreeing the submission in time for the 
closing date of 15 October 2012. 

 
3.2  Any warding pattern proposal should demonstrate how it helps provide 

effective and convenient local government and, if it would result in any 
worsening of equality of representation or community identity, the proposal 
should say why this is acceptable. The LGCBE will give more weight to 
submissions supported by evidence and argument than those which just 
present a point of view. 

 

(4) Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 
4.1 The Council has the option of making a submission or not. Whether the 

Council does or does not choose to make a submission at this stage, there 
will be a further 8 week opportunity to make representations on the 
Commission’s provisional warding pattern recommendations which are 
expected to be published in January 2013.  

 
4.2 Should the Committee decide that it wishes to make a submission, Members 

will need to consider how to draft and approve the document. The approach 
taken might depend on the depth and detail which Members wish to include in 
the submission. For example,  

 
Option A: 

 
• to discuss the content of the submission at this meeting, with the 

submission drafted by the Democratic Services Manager after the 
meeting and agreed by email with Committee Members. (This option 
might suit a limited submission, such as a simple re-iteration of the 
Council’s wish to address the electoral imbalance in Ellel Ward by re-
drawing the boundary in that Ward. This would reflect the original 
Council resolution, in March 2011, which led to the review.) 

 
 
 

Page 12



Option B: 
 

• to arrange an extra meeting of this Committee, before 15 October 
2012, to draft and agree a submission. (This approach would seem 
most practical if Members wish to develop very detailed proposals.) 

 
4.3 Members are reminded that any submission must be finalised and submitted 

to the Commission by their deadline of 15 October 2012.  
 
4,4 There is, of course, the option for political groups and individual Councillors 

to make their own submissions direct to LGBCE. 
 

(5) Conclusion  

5.1 The Committee is asked to consider the issues set out in this report in 
relation to the next stage in the electoral review process. 

 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None directly arising from this report.  The Commission aims to recommend warding 
patterns that have good electoral equality, reflect community identities and interests and 
provide for effective and convenient local government.    

  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

None directly arising from this report.   

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

None directly arising from this report.   

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

None. 

Information Services: 

None. 

Property: 

None. 

Open Spaces: 

None. 

 

Page 13



SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Council agenda and minutes 2 March and 16 
November 2011. 

Council Business Committee agenda and 
minutes 12 January and 15 March 2012. 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:  01524 582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 

Constitution – Public Speaking at Council Meetings 
 

13 September 2012 
 

Report of the Democratic Services Manager 
 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To consider amending the required deadlines, set out in Council Procedure Rule 14, for 
members of the public to submit a request to address a Council meeting. 

 

This report is public 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION  

(1) That the Committee considers the options set out in this report for 
amending the deadline for the public to submit a request to address 
Council. 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 A Member has raised a particular issue regarding the rules around members of 
the public addressing full Council meetings. These are detailed in Council 
Procedure Rule 14 which deals with the Presentation of Petitions and Hearings of 
Addresses by the Public. Rule 14.3 clearly states that any person wishing to 
address Council must give notice and show the address to the Chief Executive at 
least seven working days before the Council meeting. However, the agenda for 
the Council meeting is required to be published no later than five working days 
before the meeting. 

 
1.2 The Member is concerned that the current deadline and agenda publication date 

make it impossible for a member of the public to register to address Council about 
a particular item they have seen on the Council agenda.   

2.0 Background – Public Speaking at Cabinet and Council 

2.1 The Council has operated a public participation scheme at Council meetings for 
some time.  Details of the process are available on the Council’s website along 
with a leaflet about speaking at Council meetings. A copy of the leaflet is attached 
for Members’ information at Appendix A. 

 
2.2 The Council also allows public speaking at Cabinet meetings and the two 

schemes are intended to complement each other. The aim of the public speaking 
at Cabinet scheme is to allow members of the public to have a say on issues 
being debated by Cabinet. The rules were therefore constructed to allow the 
public to speak on a particular agenda item. The timeframe easily allows for this, 

Agenda Item 8Page 19



since the Cabinet agenda is usually published seven clear working days before 
the meeting is held, to be available for a Cabinet briefing session in advance of 
the meeting. The agenda is in the public domain for several days before the 
deadline to register, which is noon on the Thursday before the Tuesday meeting. 

 
2.3 The aim of the public participation scheme at full Council meetings is to give 

members of the public the opportunity to raise issues of concern in the Lancaster 
District. The rules allow for any Local Government Elector or Council Tax Payer in 
Lancaster district to present a petition or address which affects the district or 
inhabitants or relates to the Council’s functions. The topic they wish to speak 
about does not have to be on the agenda. 

 
2.4 However, on several occasions that the Democratic Services Manager is aware 

of, members of the public have tried to register to speak at Council meetings 
about specific agenda items and have been unhappy to learn that the deadline 
had passed before the agenda was published. Most recently, one described this 
as an “undemocratic arrangement”.  

 
2.5 The deadline for asking a question at Council is much later, midday three days 

before the Council meeting, and members of the public are always informed of this 
in case they wish to ask a question in place of an address. However, this can 
result in the member of the public using the two minute question time to make a 
short address, which is not the purpose of public questions at Council. 

 
2.6 The agenda for Council meetings is published at least five clear working days 

before the meeting and, in practice, this is normally the Monday or Tuesday of the 
week before the Wednesday meeting. It would be possible to amend the deadline 
to match the deadline for the submission of questions for Council, which is 
normally noon on the Friday before the meeting. This would allow two or three 
days for any member of the public to see an item on the agenda and request to 
speak about it.  

 

3.0 Proposal 

3.1 Members are asked to consider whether the timescales for submitting a request to 
address Council should be changed to allow members of the public to view the 
agenda before submitting their request. 

 
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1 The options open to the Committee are:- 

 
 Option 1: Not to change the 

current deadline for submitting a 
request to address Council. This 
is stated in the Constitution as 
“at least seven days before the 
meeting.” 

Option 2: To change the deadline for 
submitting a request to address 
Council to “no later than midday 
three days before the day of the 
meeting” (to match the current 
deadline for submission of questions 
from the public). 

Advantages Retains the distinction between 
the aims of the public speaking 

Members of the public will be able to 
view the agenda before deciding 

Page 20



schemes in place at Cabinet 
and at Council, should Members 
feel strongly that this is 
desirable.  
 
Some other minor advantages - 
this option won’t require 
updating of Constitution, 
website, leaflet for the public, 
etc. 
 

whether to request to speak. This 
may result in increased public 
participation/attendance at Council 
meetings. 
 

Disadvantages This option does not address 
the concerns expressed by the 
public or the Member who 
asked for this report to be 
drafted. Clearly, they feel that 
the agenda should be available 
for the public to read before 
deciding whether they wish to 
speak to Council and the 
deadline could be changed to 
accommodate that. 
 

The public will only have a relatively 
short window of opportunity to 
register to speak and to write and 
submit their address to the Chief 
Executive. The agenda is normally 
published on Tuesdays and they 
would need to submit their request 
and a draft of their address by noon 
on Friday. 
 
Small amount of work involved in 
updating the Constitution, website, 
leaflet for the public, etc. 

Risks Reputational risk. The Council 
introduced a public speaking 
scheme to encourage the public 
to participate in meetings and 
the deadlines do not appear to 
fit with public expectation. 
 
Members of the public may 
continue to misuse the 
‘questions’ facility to ‘address’ 
Council for two minutes before 
posing a question. 

None identified. If extending the 
deadline were to result in an increase 
in public speakers, Members may 
wish to consider imposing a limit on 
the number of speakers to be heard 
at one meeting. For example, 
Cabinet currently limit to a maximum 
of 10 speakers, in order of 
registration, at any one meeting.  
 

 
4.2 It is, of course, open to the Committee to discuss other possible deadlines and 

the Democratic Services Manager will be able to advise on the feasibility and 
practicalities of any of those suggestions at the meeting.  

 
4.3 The matter is for the Committee to decide at this stage and there is no officer 

preferred option.  
 
5.0 Conclusion  
 
5.1 Members are asked to consider whether the timescales for the public to register 

to address Council should be extended to allow the public to view the agenda for 
the meeting before making a request to speak. 

 
 
 

Page 21



RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
None. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no legal implications as a result of this report.   
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.  

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

None. 

Information Services: 

None. 

Property: 

None. 

Open Spaces: 

None. 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Constitution, Part 4, Section 1 and Public 
Speaking at Council/Cabinet leaflets 
published by Governance (Democratic 
Services). 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:  01524 582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

Page 22



T
he

 a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 is
 t

o 
gi

ve
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 t
he

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 t
o 

ra
is

e 
is

su
es

 o
f 

co
nc

er
n 

in
 

th
e 

La
nc

as
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t. 

W
h

o
 c

an
 y

o
u

 a
sk

?

M
em

be
rs

 
of

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
m

ay
 

as
k 

qu
es

tio
ns

 
of

 
M

em
be

rs
 

of
 

th
e 

C
ab

in
et

, 
th

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 

of
 

a 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
r 

th
e 

C
ha

irm
an

 o
f 

an
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

m
ee

tin
g,

 
at

 
or

di
na

ry
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 
of

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.

W
h

at
 y

o
u

 c
an

 a
sk

?

Y
ou

 c
an

 a
sk

 a
ny

 q
ue

st
io

n 
as

 l
on

g 
as

 i
t 

re
la

te
s 

to
 

lo
ca

l i
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

af
fe

ct
s 

th
e 

La
nc

as
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t. 

W
h

at
 y

o
u

 c
an

’t
 a

sk
?

T
he

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

m
ay

 r
ej

ec
t a

 q
ue

st
io

n 
if 

it:
 

a)
 I

s 
no

t 
ab

ou
t 

a 
m

at
te

r 
th

at
 

La
nc

as
te

r 
C

ity
 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 o

r 
do

es
n’

t 
af

fe
ct

 t
he

 
D

is
tr

ic
t;

b)
 I

s 
de

fa
m

at
or

y,
 fr

iv
ol

ou
s 

or
 o

ffe
ns

iv
e;

 
c)

 R
ef

er
s 

to
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
fo

r 
or

 
ob

je
ct

io
ns

 
to

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
 o

r 
an

y 
lic

en
ce

, 
no

tic
e 

or
 

or
de

r 
is

su
ed

, s
er

ve
d 

or
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

d)
 I

s 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 t

he
 s

am
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 

be
en

 p
ut

 a
t 

a 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 t

he
 

pa
st

 6
 m

on
th

s;
 o

r 
e)

 C
on

ce
rn

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l o
r 

ex
em

pt
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

If 
yo

ur
 q

ue
st

io
n 

is
 r

ej
ec

te
d 

yo
u 

w
ill

 b
e 

to
ld

 o
f 

th
e 

re
as

on
 w

hy
. 

A
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l

A
 r

es
id

en
t o

f L
an

ca
st

er
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ay
 p

re
se

nt
 a

 
pe

tit
io

n 
or

 a
dd

re
ss

 w
hi

ch
 i

s 
re

le
va

nt
 t

o 
m

at
te

rs
 

th
at

 t
he

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 o

r 
w

hi
ch

 
af

fe
ct

s 
th

e 
La

nc
as

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t. 

T
hi

s 
ex

cl
ud

es
 

pe
tit

io
ns

 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 a
nd

 a
ny

 li
ce

nc
e,

 n
ot

ic
e 

or
 o

rd
er

 is
su

ed
, 

se
rv

ed
 o

r 
m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

G
iv

in
g

 N
o

ti
ce

If 
yo

u 
w

an
t 

to
 a

sk
 a

 q
ue

st
io

n 
at

 a
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 
C

ou
nc

il 
yo

u 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 g

iv
e 

no
tic

e.
 Y

ou
 c

an
 d

o 
th

is
 b

y 
de

liv
er

in
g 

th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

in
 w

rit
in

g 
or

 b
y 

e-
m

ai
l t

o 
th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
no

 la
te

r 
th

an
 1

2 
no

on
, 

3 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
da

y 
of

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g.

   

T
o 

pr
es

en
t 

a 
pe

tit
io

n 
or

 a
dd

re
ss

 y
ou

 m
us

t 
gi

ve
 a

t 
le

as
t 

7 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

no
tic

e 
to

 t
he

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

by
 

m
ai

l 
or

 
e-

m
ai

l, 
su

bm
itt

in
g 

yo
ur

 
pe

tit
io

n 
or

 
ad

dr
es

s 
in

 w
rit

in
g.

 C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

L
an

ca
st

er
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

T
o

w
n

 H
al

l 
D

al
to

n
 S

q
u

ar
e 

L
an

ca
st

er
L

A
1 

1J
P

 
E

m
ai

l:
 c

h
ie

fe
xe

cu
ti

ve
@

la
n

ca
st

er
.g

o
v.

u
k 

E
ac

h 
qu

es
tio

n 
m

us
t 

be
 a

cc
om

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
na

m
e 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
s 

of
 t

he
 q

ue
st

io
ne

r 
an

d 
m

us
t 

na
m

e 
th

e 
M

em
be

r 
of

 t
he

 C
ab

in
et

 o
r 

C
ha

irm
an

 t
o 

w
ho

m
 it

 is
 

to
 b

e 
pu

t.

L
at

e 
re

q
u

es
ts

 t
o

 s
p

ea
k 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
. 

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
un

ab
le

 t
o 

be
 p

re
se

nt
 a

t 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
to

 a
sk

 
yo

ur
 q

ue
st

io
n,

 y
ou

 m
ay

 r
eq

ue
st

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 

as
k 

th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

on
 y

ou
r 

be
ha

lf.
 T

he
 C

ha
irm

an
 m

ay
 

as
k 

th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

on
 

yo
ur

 
be

ha
lf,

 
in

di
ca

te
 

th
at

 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

re
pl

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

or
 d

ec
id

e,
 in

 y
ou

r 
ab

se
nc

e,
 

th
at

 th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

de
al

t w
ith

. 

A
t a

ny
 o

ne
 m

ee
tin

g 
no

 p
er

so
n 

m
ay

 s
ub

m
it 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

o
n

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
an

d 
no

 m
or

e 
th

an
 t

w
o 

qu
es

tio
ns

 m
ay

 
be

 a
sk

ed
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 o

ne
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n.

 

A
ll 

qu
es

tio
ns

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

nd
 a

re
 o

pe
n 

to
 

pu
bl

ic
 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
is

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 

se
nt

 to
 th

e 
M

em
be

r 
to

 w
ho

m
 it

 is
 to

 b
e 

pu
t.

O
n

 t
h

e 
d

ay
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 -
 Q

u
es

ti
o

n
s

1.
 Y

ou
 m

us
t a

rr
iv

e 
at

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

at
 le

as
t 1

5 
m

in
ut

es
 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 s

ta
rt

, 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

yo
ur

se
lf 

kn
ow

n 
to

 t
he

 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
up

po
rt

 O
ffi

ce
r 

pr
es

en
t. 

2.
 Q

ue
st

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
ke

d 
in

 th
e 

or
de

r 
th

at
 th

ey
 w

er
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

, 
al

th
ou

gh
 

th
e 

C
ha

irm
an

 
m

ay
 

gr
ou

p 
si

m
ila

r 
qu

es
tio

ns
 to

ge
th

er
.  

3.
 W

he
n 

it 
is

 ti
m

e 
to

 a
sk

 y
ou

r 
qu

es
tio

n,
 th

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 

w
ill

 i
nv

ite
 y

ou
 t

o 
pu

t 
th

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 M
em

be
r.

 
T

he
re

 i
s 

a 
tim

e 
lim

it 
of

 2
 m

in
ut

es
 t

o 
as

k 
yo

ur
 

qu
es

tio
n.

4.
 U

nl
es

s 
th

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 

de
ci

de
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e,
 

no
 

di
sc

us
si

on
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 o
n 

an
y 

qu
es

tio
n.

 

Page 23



S
u

p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 Q

u
es

ti
o

n
 

5.
 Y

ou
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

as
k 

on
e 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 q

ue
st

io
n 

w
ith

ou
t 

no
tic

e 
to

 
th

e 
M

em
be

r 
th

at
 

ha
s 

an
sw

er
ed

 y
ou

r 
or

ig
in

al
 q

ue
st

io
n.

 

6.
 T

he
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 q
ue

st
io

n 
al

so
 h

as
 a

 t
im

e 
lim

it 
of

 2
 m

in
ut

es
 a

nd
 m

us
t 

ar
is

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 f

ro
m

 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 q

ue
st

io
n.

  

R
es

p
o

n
se

7.
 T

he
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 y

ou
r 

qu
es

tio
n 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

tim
e 

lim
it 

of
 3

 m
in

ut
es

. 

8.
 S

om
e 

qu
es

tio
ns

 c
an

 n
ot

 b
e 

an
sw

er
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

m
ee

tin
g,

 e
ith

er
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
la

ck
 o

f 
tim

e 
or

 
no

n-
at

te
nd

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

M
em

be
r 

to
 w

ho
m

 t
he

 
qu

es
tio

n 
w

as
 a

sk
ed

. 
T

he
se

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
an

sw
er

ed
 in

 w
rit

in
g.

 

P
ub

lic
 q

ue
st

io
n 

tim
e 

at
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ee
tin

gs
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t e
xc

ee
d 

30
 m

in
ut

es
 in

 d
ur

at
io

n.
 

O
n

 t
h

e 
d

ay
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 –
 P

et
it

io
n

/A
d

d
re

ss

1 
P

et
iti

on
s 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
se

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 
in

 th
e 

or
de

r 
th

ey
 a

re
 r

ec
ei

ve
d.

 

2 
Y

ou
 w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
pr

es
en

t 
yo

ur
 

pe
tit

io
n 

or
 

ad
dr

es
s.

 
Y

ou
 

w
ill

 
ha

ve
 

a 
5 

m
in

ut
e 

tim
e 

lim
it 

to
 d

o 
so

. 
W

ha
t 

is
 s

ai
d 

m
us

t 
re

la
te

 t
o 

th
e 

m
at

te
r 

in
di

ca
te

d 
w

he
n 

re
qu

es
tin

g 
to

 s
pe

ak
. 

3 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
yo

ur
 

ad
dr

es
s/

pe
tit

io
n 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

M
em

be
r 

w
ill

 
be

 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 

to
 

re
sp

on
d 

fo
r 

no
 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

5 
m

in
ut

es
.

4 
Y

ou
r 

pe
tit

io
n/

ad
dr

es
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

ne
xt

 
co

nv
en

ie
nt

 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 

C
ou

nc
il 

bo
dy

 if
 d

ee
m

ed
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 

C
op

ie
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

le
af

le
t 

ca
n 

be
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

by
 c

al
lin

g 
at

 L
an

ca
st

er
 

an
d 

M
or

ec
am

be
 T

ow
n 

H
al

ls
, 

or
 b

y 
te

le
ph

on
in

g 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

on
 (

01
52

4)
 5

82
09

6.
 

T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 la

rg
e 

pr
in

t, 
B

ra
ill

e,
 

au
di

o 
an

d 
in

 
ot

he
r 

la
ng

ua
ge

s.
 P

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

on
 0

15
24

 5
82

09
6 

fo
r 

m
or

e 
de

ta
ils

 o
r 

if 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 n

ee
ds

 to
 a

llo
w

 y
ou

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

ev
en

t. 

P
ro

du
ce

d 
by

: 
La

nc
as

te
r 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

La
nc

as
te

r 
T

ow
n 

H
al

l 
La

nc
as

te
r 

LA
1 

1P
J 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 o

f L
an

ca
st

er
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

w
w

.la
nc

as
te

r.
go

v.
uk

A
pr

il 
20

12
 

P
u

b
lic

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s/
P

et
it

io
n

s/
S

p
ea

ki
n

g
at

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

ee
ti

n
g

s 

A
 G

ui
de

 fo
r 

th
e 

P
ub

lic
 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

La
nc

as
te

r 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il

Page 24



COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 

Special Council Meeting 2012 
13th September 2012 

 
Report of Democratic Services Manager 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To update the committee on preparations for the Special Council meeting 

This report is public 

 
Recommendations: 

To note arrangements for the Special Council meeting, being held on 
Wednesday 17th October, 1-4pm, in the Banqueting Suite of Lancaster Town 
Hall. 

 
I Introduction 
 
1.1 In April, Council Business Committee agreed to focus the forthcoming Special 

Council on meeting young people from across the district, and asked 
Community Engagement to provide a session of political speed dating 
followed by the Pupil Power game.   This would contribute to the council’s 
Community Leadership priority, by making links with a section of the 
community which often has little contact with the council.  

 
1.2 Subsequently, council officers have advertised the meeting to councillors and 

young people throughout the district, inviting every secondary school and 
college to nominate four students to take part.  Similarly, the Young Peoples’ 
Service, Signpost, and the YMCA have been invited to nominate attendees. 

 
1.3 At the time of writing this report, 26 councillors have confirmed their 

attendance, along with a similar number of students.   Those schools which 
have yet to respond will be contacted early in the new term to establish 
whether they will be taking part. 

 
1.4 Whilst the meeting is viable with 26 councillors, it is hoped that a greater 

number can be encouraged to attend, with members of Council Business 
Committee acting as advocates for the event within their political groups. 

 
2 Details of the meeting 
 
2.1 As with all meetings of council, the Mayor will open the meeting, which will be 

run in accordance with the rules of procedure set out in the Constitution.   
 

Agenda Item 9Page 25



2.2 That however, is almost where the comparisons with a normal council 
meeting end.  The first item on the agenda is political speed dating, in which 
councillors will sit down with students for three minutes at a time to find out 
what they see as the major issues in the district, and to answer any 
questions.  When three minutes are up, the students will move round to the 
next councillor, or group of councillors, depending on the numbers attending.   

 
2.3 Prior to the speed dating, Councillor Aitchison, the council’s Champion for 

Young People, has agreed to say a few words of welcome and explain his 
role to the students. The speed dating itself will last for approximately an hour 
and is intended to break the ice and set an informal tone to the afternoon. 

 
2.4 Political speed dating will be followed by Pupil Power, a game which 

councillors will play in mixed teams with students.  Each team will have a 
fixed budget for the new financial year, but one which will not meet the cost of 
all existing services.  Therefore, each team will need to prioritise their 
resources. 

 
2.5 Whilst this is a strictly fictional exercise, elected members can gain an insight 

into those areas of council activity which young people feel particularly 
strongly about, and why.  

 
2.6 Officers from Community Engagement will be present on the day to facilitate 

both activities, with support provided by Democratic Services. 
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None.   

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no financial implications.  Any costs are minimal and will be met from within 
existing budgets. 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

None. 

Information Services: 

None. 

Property: 

None. 

Open Spaces: 

Page 26



None. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None. 

Contact Officer: Peter Baines, Senior 
Democratic Support Officer 
Telephone:  01524 582074 
E-mail: pbaines@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Page 27


	Agenda
	6 Member Development Strategy 2012/13
	MDS 2012 13

	7 Electoral Review - Warding Patterns
	Appendix

	8 Public Speaking at Council Meetings
	APPENDIX A PUBLIC SPEAKING REPORT.pdf

	9 Special Council 2012

